# Business Plan for Father Son Farm Partnership

[Covering the Period January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2019]

The purpose of this business plan is to support the transition of management responsibilities over time from the father to the son. In this context the plan provides guidelines for implementing the transition along with yardstick for measuring progress to this objective.

## **Executive Summary**

The future success of the Father Son Farm Partnership will depend on a successful transitioning of management responsibilities from the father to the son over the next five years. This is intended to position the farm partnership to be able to proceed with passing ownership shares from the father to the son.

The general principals guiding the management of the farm business over the next five years is for the business to be prepared for multiple possible outcomes. In particular to ensure the farm business has sufficient agility and resilience to deal with variability in production and prices as well as unexpected shocks and stresses that impact on key objectives.

The key activities outlined in the business plan focus on the farm business developing as a learning organization in which knowledge is the key resource. These activities include:

- The father and son working with their accountant will implement processes for monitoring the financial performance of the farm business and support the ongoing development of a strong financial position that will support future changes in the business.
- The father will support the son in developing decision making capabilities and balancing the multiple objectives of economic returns, financial risk, strategic fit and organizational fit.
- For the father and son to build on production capabilities, continuously assess key cost drivers and continually seek innovative ways to manage production costs.
- For the father and the son working together to build on the proven ability to meet contract terms to be able to use contracting to capture market opportunities.
- the father and the son working together to build relationships to continuously understand changing customer needs and to identify opportunities to provide commodities with enhancing features that lower transaction costs to buyers.
- The son will undertake to apply risk management thinking on a continuous basis in order to enhance the ability to identify, assess and mitigate risk events that might impact on key objectives.

1

# **Table of Contents**

Executive Summary	l
Table of Contents	
1.0 A General Description of the Farm Business	3
2.0 The Management Team	4
3.0 The Vision Statement	<u>6</u>
4.0 The Mission Statement	<u>7</u>
5.0 Strategic Objectives	<u>7</u>
6.0 Financial Objectives	8
7.0 Pursuing a Sustainable Competitive Advantage	8
7.1 External Analysis 8   7.2 Internal Analysis 9   7.3 Key Success factors 10   7.4 The Competitive Edge 11	
8.0 The Business Strategy	11
9.0 Marketing Strategy	12
10.0 Operating Plan	12
11.0 Organization Plan	13
12.0 The Financial Plan	15
13.0 Risk Management	19
.Appendix A – The Farm Resources	21
Appendix B – Historical Farm Production - Crops	23
Appendix C – Historical Farm Production - Cattle	25
Appendix D –Historical Financial Performance	26
Appendix E - Current Financial Position of the Father Son Partnership	27
Appendix F – Projected Financial Performance	

#### 1.0 A General Description of the Farm Business

• The Father Son Partnership farm is located 20 miles southwest of the City of Red Deer Alberta.

- The farm consists of 1440 acres of owned land of which 1375 are cultivated. An additional 1275 acres are cash rented with 470 acres of cultivated land, 700 acres of pasture and the remainder being bush areas and yard sites.
- The soil is largely a Class 2 with few limitations.
- The farm cropping program includes barley, canola, wheat, hay, silage and annual pastures.
- The livestock operation consists of a cow-calf enterprise with 300 commercial cows marketing calves each fall. In the past five years the farm has made the switch to selling calves in the late fall rather than back grounding them in their own feedlot then selling them at feeder weights. This has allowed the farm to devote more acres to grain production.
- The strength and focus of the farm operations has been the ability to produce high yielding crops.
- The owners have developed a complete line of modern cropping and forage equipment. There has been no investment in precision agriculture technology at this point.
- The farm has two building sites with modern homes. The main farm site has adequate grain storage, fertilizer storage, machinery storage and modern livestock facilities.
- The farm business was established as a partnership arrangement covering all farm assets 10 years ago with the father owning 60% and the son 40%.
- The partnership earns all the farm revenues and pays all the operating expenses as well as the principal and interest payments on debt. The remaining funds are split 60% to the father and 40% to the son from which personal withdrawals for living are made. After withdrawals, any remaining funds are added to the individual's partnership interest. Currently the father holds 65% and the son 35%.
- The farm has one full time employee.

• The father has had responsibility for the management of the business. This includes major financial decisions, managing employees and planning operations. The son has recently taken on the responsibility for decision making related to marketing the crops and livestock.

- Initially the business goals were to expand the land base using debt. In the past 5 years the managers had pursued a number of land purchases and were not successful. They realize now that the added debt of purchasing land in their district could have created financial difficulties. The business goals now focus on ensuring the business has the financial capacity to deal with year to year variability in prices and costs.
- A key short term objective is for the son to take over the management responsibility of the farm business in the next five years. This is related to a longer term objective of using debt (estimated at \$500,000) to facilitate a transfer of ownership from the father to the son.
- The purpose of the business plan is to develop a path forward that ensures the future viability and sustainability of the farm business while the son takes over the management of the business.

## 2.0 The Management Team

- The father has 35 years of farming experience and 25 years managing his own farm business. He is responsible for key areas of decision making as well as monitoring financial performance of the business, setting business goals, organizing cropping and harvest operations and employee supervision.
- The son has been involved in the farm business for 10 years and has focused primarily on operations and machinery maintenance. In the past few years the son has taken extension courses in marketing and has taken on a greater role in the planning and decision making related to grain and livestock marketing.
- The full time employee has been responsible for the care and feeding of the cattle herd as well as operating equipment during seeding and harvest.
- The bookkeeping has been done by the father while the accounting function is handled by a firm in Red Deer. The accountant has only

\_\_\_\_\_\_

provided tax preparation services with no comment on the financial structure or performance over time.

- The father has developed strong relationships with the primary lender and considers the lender to be a resource in planning and monitoring financial performance.
- The father works closely with the agronomist on staff with a local crop input supplier to plan and evaluate cropping alternatives.
- The key concern for the management team is for the son to take over all management decision making in the next three years.
- The areas where the son has to develop management capabilities for modern times have been identified as:
  - 1. Strategic decision making skills in order to develop a vision for the farm business as well as develop strategies built on a competitive edge.
  - 2. Financial management skills required to understand the strengths and limitations of financial structure and performance. A key management challenge will be to develop the financial capacity of the business to handle an additional \$500,000 in debt that will be required to transfer more ownership from father to son.
  - 3. Economic skills to be able to effectively evaluate the efficiency of resource use and in particular assess new technologies in terms of their impact on the whole farm business.
  - 4. Risk management skills to effectively implement process to identify, assess and manage risk events that could impact on specific objectives of the business.
  - 5. Relationship building skills to establish beneficial relationships with lenders, input suppliers, landlords and other key stakeholders.
  - 6. Developing the farm business to be a learning organization. This would include specific actions to ensure there is learning from past decisions and continuous improvement in decision making.

• The action steps to facilitate upgrading these capabilities include the following:

- 1. The father and son to invest time and energy in assessing the industry, the market, and the competition for resources that will shape the future business environment their farm business will have to operate in.
- 2. The father and son to continuously identify and assess alternative strategies for leveraging capabilities to capture market opportunities where the farm business might have a competitive edge.
- 3. The son to seek training in financial management in order to gain skills in understanding and managing the financial affairs of the business. The bookkeeping task will be outsourced to the accountant's office.
- 4. The son to take steps to assess the Agri-Profits program as a means of monitoring cost per unit of production, gaining insights on key cost drivers and making improvements to reduce costs.
- 5. The son to develop a network of outside individuals to support risk management processes built on identifying, assessing and managing risk forces that might impact on business objectives.
- 6. The father to transition the relationships with lenders and other stakeholders to the son.
- 7. The son to develop a set of management gauges for monitoring performance in the key areas of production, marketing human resources and finance.

#### 3.0 The Vision Statement

The future vision for the farm business is to be a viable and sustainable business managed by the son.

• The farm will maintain its focus on crop production and continuously pursue above average crop and livestock production performance.

• The farm will take steps to gain detailed knowledge of cost drivers and cost control procedures that can contribute to low cost production.

- The farm will develop a network of resource people to assist with financial management and risk management.
- The farm will undertake to identify and realize opportunities to provide commodities with enhancing features that lower transaction costs for buyers.
- The farm will have the capacity to finance \$500,000 that would be used to facilitate the transfer of ownership from the father to the son beginning 6 years from now.

#### **4.0 The Mission Statement**

The current farm business has achieved a balance of achieving acceptable financial performance, gaining financial strength, achieving desired environmental performance and achieving a desired lifestyle. Key elements include a strong working relationship between the father and son as well as between their respective families. Past decisions include not paying high prices and incurring high levels of debt to purchase additional land. This has given the farm some financial stability during a period of time in which there was considerable variability in production and market prices. The farm business will seek to maintain this balance while undertaking the transfer of ownership and management to the son.

## **5.0 Strategic Objectives**

The farm business will focus on knowledge as the means of gaining a competitive edge. Critical areas of activity for the farm business in the future will be:

- Continually striving for low cost production.
- Developing relationships that enable the farm business to become the preferred supplier to a particular market segment
- Continuously learning and innovating to provide grain, oilseed and livestock products of superior quality and value that improve the well-being of the customers in specific market segments.

#### **6.0 Financial Objectives**

Understanding and monitoring financial performance will be a key area of knowledge and competitive edge. The critical areas of financial performance that will affect the future viability and sustainability of the farm business are:

- Ensuring the farm has the financial capacity to deal with the year to year variability in prices and costs.
- Achieving profitability and cash flow performance that ensures a strong working capital position.
- Achieving the financial capacity to be able to finance \$500,000 to support the transfer of ownership from father to son.

#### 7.0 Pursuing a Sustainable Competitive Advantage

The farm business recognizes that there will be competition both for inputs as well as in gaining access to various market segments. In this environment the farm business realizes the need to provide a superior value/cost equation to customers and other stakeholders.

## 7.1 External Analysis

The farm business is part of an increasingly complex system with many inter-connected and interdependent components. The interaction among the key elements in this system will affect the viability and sustainability of the farm business. Key drivers shaping the external environment include:

- The commodity cereals, oilseed and beef markets tend to be dominated by large multi-national firms in which the primary producer is a price taker.
- Technology is will continue to advance and generate opportunities for increased productivity and providing attributes that can enable the farm to provide a superior value/cost equation to customers.
- A growing population will likely continue to drive food production. However there will be increased variability in market prices.
- Society's concerns for the environment will contribute to greater consumer and regulatory forces shaping resource use and the environment.

• There will be increased competition for the key resources of land, capital and energy.

• Interest rates have been favorable over the past five years. However there is no certainty that this will continue. An increase in interest rates of 1.75 to 2.0% would cause interest costs on term debt to increase by an estimated \$20,000 per year.

The farm recognizes that decisions focused on productivity and profitability must also account for the continuous change emanating from economic, social and ecological systems. Working together, the father and son have developed a systems perspective that contributes to developing flexibility, creativity, innovation and diversity in the farm business so it can better respond to whatever the future might throw at it.

#### 7.2 Internal Analysis

The strengths and limitations that could impact on the competitive position of the farm business include:

- The strategy of not incurring additional debt to buy land and increase the scale of operations has been a limiting factor during the times of high grain prices. However this strategy has allowed the farm to develop a strong working capital position that could provide an advantage during periods of lower grain prices.
- Higher quality land has allowed the farm to achieve above average production in both crops and livestock along with reasonable costs. This may provide an edge in terms of lower unit costs of production and having funds to invest in technology.
- The farm is dependent on rented pasture land to support the cow herd. Maintaining relationships with landlords is strong however circumstances can change. The farm may have to face the decision of how to replace lost pasture land and whether to keep the cow herd.
- The father has developed strong relationships with landlords, lenders and crop input suppliers as well as grain and cattle buyers. The farm has a proven ability to reliably meet contract terms specifying quantity and quality.
- The machinery and equipment is in good shape and serves the farm well. However machinery will have to be replaced in the next few years which will require debt financing. Ideally this purchase and financing would be completed before the farm incurs debt to facilitate the transfer of ownership.

• The farm has not taken any steps in adopting and implementing precision technologies in crop production. This may lead to a weakness in not capturing the returns these technologies can generate and not being able to compete for key resources. However this can be a future opportunity. The son recognizes the need to be able to evaluate technologies for their ability to increase returns to the whole farm business.

• Using debt to facilitate the passing of ownership to the son in the next ten years mean capital is leaving the business while the debt remains with the business. This could weaken the financial structure of the business and the ability to recover from significant shortfalls in production or market prices. The timing will be critical.

#### 7.3 Key Success factors

The farm business has the capacities to implement the following activities and practices that will enhance its ability to compete in the market and achieve long term objectives:

- For the father to train the son in developing decision making capabilities and to effectively balance the multiple objectives of economic returns, financial risk, strategic fit and organizational fit.
- For the father and the son to monitor the financial performance of the farm business to ensure the farm maintains and continues to develop a strong financial position that will support future changes in the business.
- For the father and son to build on production capabilities, continuously assess key cost drivers and continually seek innovative ways to manage production costs.
- For the father and the son working together to build on the proven ability to meet contract terms to be able to use contracting to capture market opportunities.
- For the father and the son working together to use relationship skills to continuously understand changing customer needs in order to identify and assess opportunities to provide commodities with enhancing features that lower transaction costs to buyers.

#### 7.4 The Competitive Edge

The farm business will seek to develop and sustain the competitive edge of providing a better value/cost equation for customers than do competitors through the following:

- Build on the advantage of higher producing land to achieve lower costs per unit of production.
- Build on relationship skills to sustain superior market responsiveness to opportunities to add service attributes that lower transactions costs to buyers.
- The father has developed considerable knowledge related to production, marketing, relationship building and capturing market opportunities that fit the capabilities of the farm business. This knowledge advantage could enable the son to continue capturing opportunities to increase returns with acceptable risk.

#### 8.0 The Business Strategy

The overall business strategy is for the farm business to be prepared for multiple possible future outcomes. Critical activities focus on sustaining a competitive position with a market segment combines with ensuring sufficient resiliency to deal with unexpected shocks and stresses. These include:

- Maintain current scale of operation and develop the financial management skills of son in order to gain enhanced financial control.
- Leverage production capabilities to achieve a return on total farm assets of four per cent or greater.
- To invest in crop production technologies that contribute to achieving acceptable return to total farm assets at acceptable levels of risk.
- Leverage knowledge of market needs to provide commodities with enhancing features such as delivery of large lots that lower transaction costs.
- Leverage superior knowledge of quality standards and grades to continue being a reliable supplier of quantity and quality through contracts.

### 9.0 Marketing Strategy

The farm business will implement marketing strategies that focus on identifying and realizing pricing and delivery opportunities for the grain, oilseed and cattle commodities along with identifying and realizing opportunities to provide value to specific market segments. This strategy would have the following elements:

- Leveraging a strong knowledge of price patterns, local basis levels and patterns, marketing tools and sources of market information to capture pricing and delivery opportunities.
- To continue using of production costs to determine break even prices and establishing target prices for crops and livestock.
- Continuously seeking to understand what attributes customers' value along with what processes or procedures best enhance the value of the commodities to buyers and achieve price premiums and financial success.
- Continuous learning from past marketing decisions in order to eliminate mistakes.

## 10.0 Operating Plan

The farm business has developed the following resource base.

- The farm consists of 1440 acres of owned land of which 1375 are cultivated. An additional 1275 acres are cash rented with 470 acres of cultivated land, 700 acres of pasture and the remainder being bush areas and yard sites. The land is located in a high rainfall area contributing to high yielding crop production levels.
- The crop production system implements a no tillage rotation with inputs applied to achieve target yields. The father has worked with an agronomist in determining the required level of inputs to achieve target yields each year

The key objectives and action plans for the operations component of the farm business are as follows:

• The son will start working with the agronomist and undertake to focus on economic yields with an objective of achieving a \$2 return for every dollar on inputs.

- The crop production practices do not include any precision technologies. Beginning in the current year the son will assess the net benefits of different technologies on the whole farm business. Those technologies that have a reasonable likelihood of contributing to %ROA at acceptable risk and fit with the organization and operations of the farm business will be adopted and implemented.
- The cow herd will be maintained at its current level as well as continue marketing weaned calves. The son will assess the economic and logistical feasibility of weaning the calves at home and adding an additional 100-150 pounds before marketing them. This would be a change from the current practice of selling the calves right off of the cows.
- In order to better understand and manage the key cost drivers in both crop production and cattle production, the son will assess the benefits and costs of participating in the Agri-Profits program offered by Alberta Agriculture and Rural Development.

## 11.0 Organization Plan

The key objectives and action plans for the organization component of the farm business are as follows:

- The farm business will continue to operate as a partnership with the longer term (5 to 10 years) objective of using debt financing to pass increased ownership from the father to the son.
- The farm currently has one full time employee who spends 70% of his time on the cattle operations and the remainder on field work in the spring and fall. The father has worked closely with the employee in the past however going forward it will be up to the son to provide leadership to the employee and take action to ensure the employee remains with the farm.
- The father anticipates having a reduced workload on the farm and there may need to be additional hired help during busy time. This further emphasizes the need for the son to develop the leadership

qualities required to organize operations and effectively manage hired employees.

- The father has in the past developed strong relationships with outside resources including lenders, input suppliers, accountants and advisors. Going forward ti will become the responsibility of the son to develop these relationships.
- The father has been the primary decision maker on the farm business. Going forward the son will take over the decision making activities for the whole business. The father and son working together will adopt a decision making process with the following core elements:
  - 1. Framing to bring focus to the true problem or issue at hand.
  - 2. Gathering Information that asks the right questions interprets information properly and determines when there is sufficient information for making effective choices.
  - 3. Coming to Conclusions that ensure decision makers apply appropriate levels of analysis including weighted decision frameworks that enable consideration of multiple objectives.
  - 4. Learning from past decisions and ensuring there is continuous improvement in decision making.
- In order to develop the financial skills required the son will investigate training programs either available at the Olds College or on-line.

## 12.0 The Financial Plan

The <u>business model for making money</u> will be based on the following key assumptions:

CANOLA				FEED BARLEY				CPS WHEAT									
PRICE PROBABILITY				PRICE PROBABILITY				PRICE PROBABILITY									
				W	eighted					W	eighted					We	eighted
	\$/bu		chance		value		\$/bu		chance		value		\$/bu		chance		value
\$	9.00		15%	\$	1.35	\$	2.25		15%	\$	0.34	\$	4.50		15%	\$	0.68
\$	9.50		20%	\$	1.90	\$	2.50		25%	\$	0.63	\$	4.75		20%	\$	0.95
\$	10.00		25%	\$	2.50	\$	2.75		25%	\$	0.69	\$	5.00		20%	\$	1.00
\$	10.50		25%	\$	2.63	\$	3.00		20%	\$	0.60	\$	5.25		25%	\$	1.31
\$	11.00		15%	\$	1.65	\$	3.25		15%	\$	0.49	\$	5.50		15%	\$	0.83
			100%						100%						95%		
Weig	hted					We	ighted					Weighted					
price		\$	10.03	/bu		pric	e	\$	2.74	/bu		price		\$	4.76	/bu	

Projected Crop Production 2014	Canola	Barley Feed	CPS Wheat	Barley Silage	Hay	Total
Acres	400	400	800	100	140	1840
Price	\$10.03	\$2.74	\$4.76	\$65.00	\$100.00	0
Yield	42	88	72	7.5	1.85	0
Value of Production (\$/acre)	\$421	\$241	\$343	\$488	\$185	\$613,778
Total variable costs	\$303.77	\$227.40	\$238.01	\$221.31	\$122.50	\$442,157
Total Cash Fixed Costs	\$36.00	\$34.50	\$34.50	\$34.50	\$34.50	\$64,080
Total Cash Expenses	\$339.77	\$261.90	\$272.51	\$255.81	\$157.00	\$506,237
Margin	\$81.49	-\$20.78	\$70.21	\$231.69	\$28.00	\$107,541
Break-Even Selling Prices	Canola	Barley Feed	CPS Wheat			
To Cover all Cash Costs	\$8.09	\$2.98	\$3.78			

\_\_\_\_\_

Projected Crop Production 2015	Canola	Barley Feed	CPS Wheat	Barley Silage	Hay	Total
Acres	450	350	800	100	140	1840
Price	\$11.00	\$3.00	\$5.25	\$65.00	\$100.00	0
Yield	45	90	75	9	1.85	0
Value of Production (\$/acre)	\$495	\$270	\$394	\$585	\$185	\$716,650
Total variable costs	\$298.62	\$219.40	\$232.96	\$230.56	\$117.75	\$437,078
Total Cash Fixed Costs	\$36.00	\$34.50	\$34.50	\$34.50	\$34.50	\$64,080
Total Cash Expenses	\$333.12	\$253.90	\$267.46	\$265.06	\$152.25	\$500,558
Margin	\$161.88	\$16.10	\$126.29	\$319.94	\$32.75	\$216,092
Break-Even Selling Prices	Canola	Barley Feed	CPS Wheat			
To Cover all Cash Costs	\$7.40	\$2.82	\$3.57			

	Steer Calves						Heifer Calves				
	PRICE PROBABILITY					PRICE PROBABILITY					
	\$/lb.		chance		weighted value		\$/lb.		chance		weighted value
\$	1.70		10%	\$	0.17	\$	1.65		10%	\$	0.17
\$	1.75		15%	\$	0.26	\$	1.70		15%	\$	0.26
\$	1.80		25%	\$	0.45	\$	1.75		25%	\$	0.44
\$	1.85		25%	\$	0.46	\$	1.80		25%	\$	0.45
\$	1.90		25%	\$	0.48	\$	1.82		25%	\$	0.46
			100%						100%		
Weigl	Weighted		Weighted								
price		\$	1.82	/lb		price		\$	1.76	/lb	

16

	T	ı
	2014	2015
Number of Bred Cows/Heifers	300	300
Live calves Born	290	290
Number of Calves weaned	288	288
% Weaned Calves	96.00%	96.00%
Steer Calves Weaned	144	144
Heifer Calves Weaned	144	144
Weaning Weight Heifers	650	650
Weaning weight Steers	700	700
Hiefer Price received	1.76	1.75
Steer price received	1.82	1.80
Total Calf Revenues	\$348,192	\$345,240
Cull Cows (#)	35	38
Cull Cow Price	\$1,250	\$1,325
Cull Cow revenues	\$43,750	\$50,350
Cull Bulls	2	3
Cull Bull Price	\$1,450	\$1,500
Cull Bull revenues	\$2,900	\$4,500
Less Purchased Bulls	\$7,000	\$11,500
Number of Bred Heifers	40	38
Less Value of Bred Heifers	\$60,000	\$57,000
Total Value of Production	\$327,842	\$331,590
Less Cash Costs	\$185,000	\$195,000
Gross Margin	\$142,842	\$136,590
Break Even Selling Price Heifers	\$0.94	\$0.99
Break Even Selling Price Steers	\$0.97	\$1.02

The past financial performance and <u>current financial position</u> of the farm business (presented in Appendices D and E) are considered to be quite strong as indicated by the following measures of financial structure.

Current Ratio:	1.25
Debt to Equity Ratio:	0.45
Equity to Assets Ratio	0.69
Solvency Ratio:	0.31
Working Capital:	\$96,894

The <u>expected financial performance</u> for the farm business over the next two years is presented in Appendix F. The expected profitability performance under aligns with historical performance and is considered to be reasonable for the current farm business. The cash flow performance is also considered to be both reasonable and acceptable with a continued increase in the working capital position of the business. The forward projections have produced the following key indicators of financial performance and financial structure.

Key Indicators of Financial Performance	For the Year Ending December 31, 2014	For the Year Ending December 31, 2015
Net Accrued farm Income	\$184,767	\$243,424
%ROA	2.99%	4.11%
Debt Servicing Capacity Ratio	0.94	1.25

Key Indicators of financial Structure	January 1, 2014	January 1, 2015	January 1, 2016
Current Ratio	1.25	1.23	1.45
Net worth Ratio	0.69	0.73	0.76
Working Capital	\$96,894	\$86,996	\$164,160
WC as % of Operating Expenses	15.43%	13.85%	26.14%

The farm business recognizes that the financial management skills and capabilities of the business will be a critical element in achieving financial success. In the coming year (2014) the son will take responsibility for implementing the following actions:

- The father and son will develop forward plans for the business in order to gain an assessment of expected outcomes for profitability, cash flows and financial structure.
- The bookkeeping will be outsourced to the accountant's office. The bookkeeper will generate quarterly income statements and budgeted versus actual assessments in order for the son to more closely monitor financial performance. The son and father will update forward plans when necessary.
- The son will take action to access training in financial management in order to effectively participate in quarterly meeting with the accountant and annual meetings with the primary lender.

• The father and son will take steps to carefully assess all past financial decisions in order to learn from these decisions and refine their decision making processes.

#### 13.0 Risk Management

Risk management is a key factor in the overall strategy of being prepared for multiple possible outcomes while making progress to the objectives of transferring management responsibilities (short term) and ownership (longer term).

A key source of uncertainty will be variability in production and market prices. Production risk in crops will be managed through full use of crop insurance available through Agriculture Financial Services Corporation (AFSC). Production risk in the cattle enterprise will continue to be dealt with through proactive approaches to animal health and nutrition. Price risk will be managed through full use of marketing tools including the Spring Price Endorsement (SPE) available with crop insurance as well as forward contracting tools. As well the Cattle Price Insurance Products (CPIP) will be used to manage uncertainty in cattle prices. The son will be responsible for identifying and realizing both pricing and delivery opportunities for crops and market cattle.

Financial risk includes factors that affect profitability, cash flow performance, debt servicing capacity and access to capital. The negative effects of these factors will be managed through managing the debt level of the farm business together with the monitoring and assessment processes established in the financial plan.

The son will undertake to apply risk management thinking on a continuous basis in order to enhance the ability to identify, assess and mitigate risk events that if they were to occur could have an impact on the objectives set for the business. This will be achieved by working with a management advisor who can put this process into practical application that becomes a normal part of tactical and strategic thinking.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

A key element in risk management is identifying the individual responsible for taking action to implement the risk management strategy. An initial assessment of risk events that might impact on the objectives of the farm business along with possible strategies and the individual responsible is as follows:

<b>Potential Risk</b>	Risk Strategy	Responsibility
Events		
Reduced	Manage debt levels, ongoing	Father and Son
Working	monitoring of financial	working with
Capital	performance including budgeted	accountant's office
	versus actual. Consider use of	
	Crop Choices tool to assess	
	likelihood of achieving required levels of financial performance.	
Crop price	Forward contracting and Spring	Son
variability	Price Endorsement (SPE)	5011
variability	` ,	
Caulanda	available with crop insurance.	C
Cattle Price	Cattle Price Insurance (CPIP)	Son
variability	products	
Reduced access	Build strong relationships	Father transitioning
to key inputs	based on respect and	to son
including	information exchange.	
capital		
Strategy of	Continuously seek to	Father and son to
pursuing	understand what attributes	invest time and
value/cost	customers' value along with	energy in
opportunities	what processes or procedures	understanding
with unique	best enhance the value of the	customer values
market	commodities to buyers and	
segments	achieve price premiums and	
becomes	financial success.	
obsolete		

<b>Potential Risk Events</b>	Risk Strategy	Responsibility
Limited labour	Continuously seek to	Father transitioning to
availability	determine actions needed	son
	to retain employee.	
	Consider investment in	
	auto-steer to improve	
	working conditions.	
Increased competition	Continue to build	Father transitioning
for rented land	relationships with	to son
	landlords taking time to	
	understand what they	
	value most in a rental	
	relationship.	
Changing policy and	Take time to monitor	Father.
trade factors.	events in the policy and	
	trade arenas, consider	
	participation in	
	producer organizations	
Changing land use	Monitor changes in	Father transitioning
regulations including	regulations work with	to son
fertilizer practices.	agronomist to	
	determine options	
	available for dealing	
	with regulations	
	impacting on fertilizer	
	use	
Hazards	Annual meetings with	Father transitioning
	insurance agent to	to son
	ensure coverage is	
	appropriate for	
	changing circumstances	

# **Appendix A - The Farm Resources**

Land Own	ed: (without buildin	ng values)					
Parcel	Legal		N	lame on	Total	Cult	Market
#	Description			Title	Acres	Acres	Value
1	SE 13-31-27-4		Father So	n farm	160	145	\$360,000
2	NE 7-31-26-4		Father So	n farm	160	150	\$300,000
3	NW 8-31-26-4		Father So	n farm	160	140	\$300,000
4	E 1/2 17-31-		Father So	n farm	320	310	\$360,000
5	N 1/2 1-31-		Father So	n farm	320	310	\$360,000
6	N 1/2 16-31-		Father So	n farm	320	320	\$360,000
			To	otal Owned Land	1440	1375	\$2,040,000
Land Rent	ed and Crown Lea	ses:					
Parcel	Legal Description		Owner		Total Ac.	Cult. Ac.	Cash Rent
1	NE 18-31		Land Own	er	160	160	\$9,000
2	NW 18-31-		Land Own	er	160	150	\$8,000
3	SW 18-31-		Land Owner		160	60	\$3,600
4	SW 23-31-		Land Own	er	160	100	\$6,000
5	N 1/2 14-31-		Land Own	er	155		
6	NW 22-31-		Land Own	er	160		
7	W 1/2 20-31-		Land Own	er	320		
			To	tal Rented Land:	1275	470	\$26,600
	Total De	eded and Rented	Land at Be	eginning of Year:	2715	1845	

	Buildings C	Owned:	
Land	Building		Market
Parcel #	Description		Value
1	House		\$250,000
1	Grain Storage		\$350,000
1	Machinery Storage		\$150,000
1	Livestock Facilities		\$75,000
2	House		\$200,000
2	Garage		\$25,000
Total Mark	Total Market Value of Buildings at Beginning of Year: \$1,050,000		

Owr	ned Machinery	
Equipmen	t Make, Model, Size	Market Value
Mower	NH MZ 19H	\$3,500
Air Drill	JD	\$185,000
Grain Conveyer		\$13,000
Bale Wagon	Morris	\$8,000
Blade	JD 8'	\$1,000
Swather	IHC 25'	\$15,000
Computer	Computer Equipment	\$3,750
Mower; Haybine	IHC 6' Mower	\$6,000
Bale Feeder	Stampede Steel	\$1,500
Mix Mill	#750	\$4,000
Livestock Equipt	t. Cattle oiler	\$1,500
Rake	Jiffy Wheel Rake	\$8,500
Baler	JD #567 Round Baler	\$25,000
Auger	Sakundiak SP	\$5,000
Trailer	Flatdeck Tip Trailer	\$1,500
Bale Shredder	Haybuster 2640 w/ grain feed	\$8,500
Sprayer	Flexicoil 90' Boom	\$21,000
Livestock Equipt		
Trailers	Doepker Super B; Hiboy 481	\$28,000
Swather	Heston SP	\$20,000
Quad	Honda 400 & Sprayer	\$4,500
Solar Kit	Gall Solar Kit; Solar Water Sys	st∈ \$2,500
Tractors	JD 8770; JD 4030	\$52,500
Truck	Ford 3/4 4x4	\$600
Tractor	MF #6400	\$40,000
Tractors	JD #7520; JD 4520	\$100,000
Truck	Chev 1/2 ton	\$4,000
Trailer	Wilson 24' Stock Trailer	\$15,000
Truck	GMC 1 Ton Dually w/ Hydra Do	ec \$25,000
Truck	Ford F8000	\$15,000
Combine	JD #9600 & Straight Cut heade	er \$95,000
Total Market Va	alue of Equipment Owned at Beginnir	ng \$714,850
Depreciation Ra		7
Total Depreciation		\$50,040

# **Appendix B – Historical Farm Production - Crops**

Historical Crop Production 2013	Canola	Barley Feed	CPS Wheat	Barley Silage	Hay	Total
Acres	400	400	800	100	140	1840
Price	\$10.50	\$3.00	\$4.25	\$55.00	\$100.00	
Yield	48.00	95.00	75.00	9.00	1.85	
Value of Production (\$/acre)	\$504.00	\$285.00	\$318.75	\$495.00	\$185.00	\$646,000
Variable Costs per Acre (Cash)						
Seed	41.85	9.75	18.65	9.75	0.00	\$36,535
Fertilizer	109.40	72.25	72.25	70.00	25.00	\$140,960
Chemicals	29.25	28.30	28.30	18.00		\$47,460
Crop Insurance Premiums	23.47	7.95	11.66	12.56	6.00	\$23,992
Trucking & Marketing	7.80	5.50	6.50	10.50	10.00	\$12,970
Fuel, Oil & Lube	18.75	22.50	22.50	27.75	20.00	\$40,075
Repairs - Machinery	25.00	25.00	25.00	25.00	18.75	\$45,125
Repairs-Buildings	3.25	3.25	3.25	3.25	3.25	\$5,980
Utilities & Misc	12.00	12.00	12.00	12.00	12.00	\$22,080
Custom work & Spec. labor	5.50	3.40	3.40	5.00	0.00	\$6,780
Operating Interest Paid	7.22	7.22	7.22	7.00	7.00	\$13,230
Land Rent (over all acres)	14.50	14.50	14.50	14.50	14.50	\$26,680
Paid Labor and Benefits	8.00	8.00	8.00	8.00	8.00	\$14,720
Total variable costs	\$306	\$220	\$233	\$223	\$125	\$436,587
Fixed Cash Costs per Acre						
Taxes,etc.	\$2.00	\$2.00	\$2.00	\$2.00	\$2.00	\$3,680
Paid capital Interes:	\$32.50	\$32.50	\$32.50	\$32.50	\$32.50	\$59,800
Total Cash Fixed Costs	\$34.50	\$34.50	\$34.50	\$34.50	\$34.50	\$63,480
Total Cash Expenses	\$340.49	\$254.12	\$267.73	\$257.81	\$159.00	\$500,067
Margin	\$163.51	\$30.88	\$51.02	\$237.19	\$26.00	145,933

Historical Crop Production 2012	Canola	Barley Feed	CPS Wheat	Barley Silage	Hay	Total
Acres	400	400	800	100	140	1840
Price	\$12.25	\$3.45	\$5.25	\$65.00	\$100.00	
Yield	42.00	88.00	72.00	9.00	1.85	
Value of Production (\$/acre	\$514.50	\$303.60	\$378.00	\$585.00	\$185.00	\$714,040
Variable Costs per Acre (Cash)						
Seed	41.85	9.75	18.65	9.75	0.00	\$36,535
Fertilizer	109.40	72.25	72.25	70.00	25.00	\$140,960
Chemicals	29.25	28.30	28.30	18.00		\$47,460
Crop Insurance Premiums	23.47	7.95	11.66	12.56	6.00	\$23,992
Trucking & Marketing	7.80	5.50	6.50	10.50	10.00	\$12,970
Fuel, Oil & Lube	18.75	22.50	22.50	27.75	20.00	\$40,075
Repairs - Machinery	25.00	25.00	25.00	25.00	18.75	\$45,125
Repairs-Buildings	3.25	3.25	3.25	3.25	3.25	\$5,980
Utilities & Misc	12.00	12.00	12.00	12.00	12.00	\$22,080
Custom work & Spec. labor	5.50	3.40	3.40	5.00	0.00	\$6,780
Operating Interest Paid	7.22	7.22	7.22	7.00	7.00	\$13,230
Land Rent (over all acres)	14.50	14.50	14.50	14.50	14.50	\$26,680
Paid Labor and Benefits	8.00	8.00	8.00	8.00	8.00	\$14,720
Total variable costs	\$306	\$220	\$233	\$223	\$125	\$436,587
Fixed Cash Costs per Acre						
Taxes,etc.	\$2.00	\$2.00	\$2.00	\$2.00	\$2.00	\$3,680
Paid capital Interest	\$32.50	\$32.50	\$32.50	\$32.50	\$32.50	\$59,800
Total Cash Fixed Costs	\$34.50	\$34.50	\$34.50	\$34.50	\$34.50	\$63,480
Total Cash Expenses	\$340.49	\$254.12	\$267.73	\$257.81	\$159.00	\$500,067
Margin	\$174.01	\$49.48	\$110.27	\$327.19	\$26.00	213,973

•

# **Appendix C - Historical Farm Production - Cattle**

	2012	2013
Number of Bred Cows/Heifers	295	300
Live calves Born	285	290
Number of Calves weaned	280	285
% Weaned Calves	94.92%	95.00%
Average Weaning Weight	675	678
Total Weaned Weight	189,000	193,230
Average Price Received (\$/lb.)	\$1.75	\$1.88
Total Calf Revenues	\$330,750	\$362,306
Cull Cows (#)	35	38
Cull Cow Price	\$1,250	\$1,325
Cull Cow revenues	\$43,750	\$50,350
Cull Bulls	2	3
Cull Bull Price	\$1,450	\$1,500
Cull Bull revenues	\$2,900	\$4,500
Less Purchased Bulls	\$7,000	\$11,500
Number of Bred Heifers	40	38
Less Value of Bred Heifers	\$60,000	\$57,000
Total Value of Production	\$310,400	\$348,656
Less Cash Costs	\$221,250	\$231,000
Gross Margin	\$89,150	\$117,656

# **Appendix D -Historical Financial Performance**

For the Year Ending		December 31, 2012	December 31, 2013	
Income		·	,	
	Livestock	\$328,450	\$334,200	
	Cropping	\$585,633	\$521,550	
Rebates	9	\$6,500	\$7,000	
Patronage Dividends		\$935	\$1,500	
Gas, Oil, Seismic Leases		\$9,275	\$10,000	
	Total Cash Farm Income	\$930,793	\$874,250	
Livestock Inventory Adjustr	ment	\$0	\$0	
Grown For Sale Crop Inven		\$42,555	\$103,080	
	Total Accrued Farm Income	\$973,348	\$977,330	
Operating Expenses	<b>3</b>			
	Livestock	\$98,212	\$102,450	
	Cropping	\$485,324	\$502,350	
Overhead	Expenses:			
Property Taxes		\$5,750	\$6,500	
License, Insurance		\$20,114	\$21,250	
Misc.Supplies, Hardware		\$2,050	\$1,785	
Accounting, Legal, Office		\$2,975	\$3,250	
Telephone		\$2,145	\$2,240	
Fees Dues, memberships		\$1,978	\$1,850	
Operating Interest		\$3,245	\$2,240	
Term Interest		\$48,950	\$44,950	
Total Cash Expenses:		\$670,743	\$688,865	
Depreciation		\$108,956	\$115,400	
Feed and Supplies Adjustr	nent	-\$10,000	\$0	
Accrued Interest Adjustme	nt	\$0	\$0	
	Total Accrued Expenses	\$779,699	\$804,265	
	Accrued Net Farm Income	\$193,649	\$173,065	

# Appendix E - Current Financial Position of the Father Son Partnership

Net Worth Statement	January 1,	, 2014	
Current Assets:		Current Debt:	
Cash in Bank - C/A	\$5,000	Operating Loan	\$45,000
Accounts Receivable	\$0	Feeders	\$0
Crops For Sale	\$377,000	Canadian Wheat Board	\$0
Feed & Supplies	\$102,375	Other Current Debt	\$0
Market Livestock	\$0	Accounts Payable	\$125,000
		Accrued Interest	\$10,516
		Current Portion Term Debt	\$206,964
Total Current Assets:	\$484,375	Total Current Debt:	\$387,481
Intermediate Assets:		Intermediate Debt:	
Machinery & Equipment	\$714,850	Machinery Loan #1	\$40,628
Breeding Livestock	\$487,500	Machinery Loan #2	\$212,122
		Machinery Loan #3	\$142,918
		Machinery Loan #4	\$36,006
		Truck Loan	\$0
		Cattle Loan	\$57,804
Total Intermediate Assets:	\$1,202,350	Total Intermediate Debt:	\$489,478
Long Term Assets:		Long Term Debt:	
Land	\$2,040,000	Land Loan #1	\$137,232
Lease Land	\$0	Land Loan #2	\$332,573
Buildings	\$1,050,000	-	\$0
Other Long Term Assets	\$0	House Loan	\$132,945
Total Long Term Assets:	\$3,090,000	Total Long Term Debt:	\$602,750
Total Term Assets:	\$4,292,350	Total Term Debt:	\$1,092,228
Total Assets:	\$4,776,725	Total Debt:	\$1,479,708
		Net Worth or Equity:	\$3,297,017

# **Appendix F - Projected Financial Performance**

Income and Exp			
For the Year Ending		December 31, 2014	December 31, 2015
Income			
	Livestock	\$348,992	\$348,198
	Cropping	\$570,596	\$532,290
Rebates		\$7,500	\$10,000
Patronage Dividends		\$1,500	\$1,500
Gas, Oil, Seismic Leases		\$10,000	\$10,000
	Total Cash Farm Income	\$938,588	\$904,988
Livestock Inventory Adjustment		\$0	\$0
Grown For Sale Crop Inventory Adj	ustment	-\$40,580	\$61,680
	Total Accrued Farm Income	\$898,008	\$966,668
Operating Expenses			
	Livestock	\$105,910	\$98,520
	Cropping	\$418,312	\$437,011
Overhead I	Expenses:		
Property Taxes		\$6,500	\$6,500
License, Insurance		\$22,000	\$25,000
Misc.Supplies, Hardware		\$2,500	\$2,500
Accounting, Legal, Office		\$12,500	\$10,000
Telephone		\$2,400	\$2,400
Fees Dues, memberships		\$2,500	\$2,500
Operating Interest		\$4,184	\$3,257
Term Interest		\$47,693	\$40,383
Total Cash Expenses:		\$624,499	\$628,071
Depreciation		\$102,540	\$96,412
Feed and Supplies Adjustment		-\$11,650	\$725
Accrued Interest Adjustment		-\$2,147	-\$1,964
·	Total Accrued Expenses	\$713,241	\$723,244
	Accrued Net Farm Income:	\$184,767	\$243,424

Projected Cash Flow Summary				
For the Year Ending	December 31, 2014	December 31, 2015		
Beginning Cash	\$5,000	\$22,125		
Operating Activities				
Inflows Farm Operating Activities	\$938,588	\$904,988		
Outflows Farm Operating Activities	-\$572,622	-\$584,431		
Net Inflows from Operations	\$365,966	\$320,557		
Personal Activities				
Inflows from Personal Off-Farm Activities:	\$0	\$0		
Off-Farm Activities:	-\$95,000	-\$95,000		
Net Inflows from Personal	-\$95,000	-\$95,000		
Financing Activities				
Operating Advances Repaid:	-\$125,000	-\$175,000		
Operating Loan Repaid	-\$45,000			
Total Term Loan Payments:	-\$254,657	-\$227,121		
Operating Loan Interest:	-\$4,184	-\$3,257		
New Term Loans				
Operating Advances	\$175,000	\$175,000		
Net Inflows from Financing	-\$253,841	-\$230,377		
Ending Cash Balance	\$22,125	\$17,305		

\_\_\_\_\_

Net Worth Statement	January 1, 2014	January 1, 2015	January 1, 2016
Current Assets:			
Cash in Bank - C/A	\$5,000	\$22,125	\$17,305
Accounts Receivable	\$0		
Crops For Sale	\$377,000	\$336,420	\$398,100
Feed & Supplies	\$102,375	\$114,025	\$113,300
Market Livestock	\$0		
Total Current Assets:	\$484,375	\$472,570	\$528,705
Intermediate Assets:			
Machinery & Equipment	\$714,850	\$664,811	\$618,273
Breeding Livestock	\$487,500	\$487,500	\$487,500
Total Intermediate Assets:	\$1,202,350	\$1,152,311	\$1,105,773
Long Term Assets:		·	
Land	\$2,040,000	\$2,040,000	\$2,040,000
Lease Land	\$0	\$0	\$0
Buildings	\$1,050,000	\$997,500	\$947,625
Other Long Term Assets	\$0		
Total Long Term Assets:	\$3,090,000	\$3,037,500	\$2,987,625
Total Term Assets:	\$4,292,350	\$4,189,811	\$4,093,398
Total Assets:	\$4,776,725	\$4,662,380	\$4,622,103
Current Debt			
Operating Loan	\$45,000	\$0	\$0
Accounts Payable	\$125,000	\$175,000	\$175,000
Accrued Interest	\$10,516	\$8,369	\$6,406
Current Portion Term Debt	\$206,964	\$186,738	\$183,139
Total Current Debt:	\$387,481	\$370,107	\$364,544
Intermediate Debt		·	
Machinery Loan #1	\$40,628	\$27,086	\$13,544
Machinery Loan #2	\$212,122	\$169,235	\$126,347
Machinery Loan #3	\$142,918	\$101,336	\$59,754
Machinery Loan #4	\$36,006	\$14,868	\$0
Cattle Loan	\$57,804	\$29,509	\$71
Total Intermediate Debt:	\$489,478	\$342,034	\$199,717
Long Term Debt		·	
Land Loan #1	\$137,232	\$125,551	\$113,457
Land Loan #2	\$332,573	\$316,013	\$298,784
House Loan	\$132,945	\$121,892	\$110,393
Total Long Term Debt:	\$602,750	\$563,456	\$522,635
Total Term Debt:	\$1,092,228	\$905,490	\$722,351
Total Debt:	\$1,479,708	\$1,275,597	\$1,086,896
Net Worth or Equity:	\$3,297,017	\$3,386,783	\$3,535,207